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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING 
CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION 
DIVISION FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSIDERING: 

APPLICATION OF NAUMANN OIL & GAS, 
INC. 

CASE NO. 1 0 , 9 7 9 

... $ *m 
ORIGINAL 

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

EXAMINER HEARING 

BEFORE: DAVID R. CATANACH, Hearing Examiner 

May 26, 1994 

Santa Fe, New Mexico 

This matter came on f o r hearing before the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n on Thursday, May 26, 1994, a t Morgan 

H a l l , State Land O f f i c e B u i l d i n g , 310 Old Santa Fe T r a i l , 

Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d 

Court Reporter No. 7 f o r the State of New Mexico. 

* * * 
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I N D E X 

May 26, 1994 
Examiner Hearing 
CASE NO. 10,979 

PAGE 
APPEARANCES 3 

APPLICANT'S WITNESSES: 

DAVID N. FRYE 
D i r e c t Examination by Mr. K e l l a h i n 6 
Examination by Examiner Catanach 28 
Examination by Mr. C a r r o l l 32 

HENRY JACK NAUMANN 
D i r e c t Examination by Mr. K e l l a h i n 32 
Examination by Examiner Catanach 47 

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE 52 

* * * 

E X H I B I T S 

I d e n t i f i e d Admitted 
E x h i b i t 1 8 27 
E x h i b i t 2 9 27 
E x h i b i t 3 12 27 
E x h i b i t 4 12 27 
E x h i b i t 5 12 27 

E x h i b i t 6 16 27 
E x h i b i t 7 17 27 
E x h i b i t 8 18 27 
E x h i b i t 9 20 27 
E x h i b i t 10 35 46 

E x h i b i t 11 37 46 
E x h i b i t 12 39 46 
E x h i b i t 13 42 46 
E x h i b i t 14 45 46 

* * * 
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A P P E A R A N C E S 

FOR THE DIVISION: 

RAND L. CARROLL 
Attorne y a t Law 
Legal Counsel t o the D i v i s i o n 
State Land O f f i c e B u i l d i n g 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504 

FOR THE APPLICANT: 

KELLAHIN & KELLAHIN 
117 N. Guadalupe 
P.O. Box 2265 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-2265 
By: W. THOMAS KELLAHIN 

* * * 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:15 a.m.: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: C a l l the hearing t o order 

t h i s morning f o r Docket Number 16-94. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: At t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l Case 

10,979. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of Naumann O i l & Gas, 

In c . , f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , an unorthodox gas w e l l 

l o c a t i o n and a nonstandard gas p r o r a t i o n and spacing u n i t 

Eddy County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are the r e appearances i n t h i s 

case? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

today on behalf of the Ap p l i c a n t , and I have two witnesses 

t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any a d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

W i l l the witnesses please stand and be sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I have two witnesses 

f o r you. 

Mr. David Frye i s a c o n s u l t i n g landman. He was 

the i n d i v i d u a l t h a t was challenged t o put togethe r a l l 

these town l o t s on the south side of the C i t y of Carlsbad 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
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t o r e f o r m u l a t e a gas spacing u n i t so t h a t h i s c l i e n t , Mr. 

Jack Naumann, who i s the president and p r i n c i p a l of Naumann 

O i l and Gas, I n c . , could re-enter an o l d abandoned Morrow 

gas w e l l and attempt t o recomplete i t i n what we've 

i d e n t i f i e d as the Carlsbad-Strawn Gas Pool. 

Mr. Frye w i l l go through the d e t a i l s of how he 

has consolidated the t r a c t s t o the best of h i s a b i l i t y . 

During the course of h i s work, he has found t h a t t h i s h a l f 

s e c t i o n , as a r e s u l t of a governmental survey, i s an 

i r r e g u l a r s i z e . We're deal i n g w i t h 3 07 acres, p l u s or 

minus. 

I n a d d i t i o n , the o r i g i n a l w e l l was d r i l l e d by C&K 

Petroleum back i n 1977 pursuant t o a compulsory p o o l i n g 

order and the approval of a nonstandard or unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n f o r t h a t w e l l . Obviously the w e l l continues t o 

e x i s t a t an unorthodox l o c a t i o n . I t s l o c a t i o n crowds 

towards operations by OXY U.S.A., Inc. And they are a 

c l i e n t of mine, I've contacted them and they have consented 

t o the l o c a t i o n . That i s not objected t o . 

Mr. Frye w i l l go through w i t h you the d e t a i l s of 

how he has i d e n t i f i e d the i n t e r e s t owners and how he has 

cons o l i d a t e d the t r a c t s and what he proposes t o do w i t h 

regards t o the a l l o c a t i o n of i n t e r e s t i n the t r a c t s . 

Mr. Naumann i s a g e o l o g i s t by education and 

experience, but he's also a p r a c t i c a l o i l and gas operator. 
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His e x p e r t i s e i s t o f i n d o l d abandoned w e l l s and t o r e ­

enter them, and t h i s i s not h i s f i r s t e f f o r t . He w i l l 

describe f o r you what he has determined t o be the advantage 

of using these w e l l s . 

I n a d d i t i o n , he has a l l o c a t e d costs f o r the value 

of t h i s e x i s t i n g wellbore and estimated f o r you what are 

the a d d i t i o n a l costs r e q u i r e d by him i n order t o r e - e n t e r 

t h i s w e l l . 

There i s s i g n i f i c a n t r i s k , and he w i l l describe 

f o r you the r i s k . He i s seeking a 2 00-percent r i s k - f a c t o r 

p e n a l t y w i t h regards t o t h i s order. 

At t h i s time I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Mr. David Frye. 

DAVID N. FRYE. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Frye, f o r the record, s i r , would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s David Nichols Frye. I'm a landman i n 

Piano, Texas. 

Q. Mr. Frye, the microphone w i l l not a m p l i f y your 

voice i n here, and there's some background noise from the 

a i r c o n d i t i o n i n g , so i f y o u ' l l speak up. 

On p r i o r occasions, s i r , have you t e s t i f i e d 
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before the D i v i s i o n as a petroleum landman? 

A. I b e l i e v e I have. 

Q. You were h i r e d by Naumann O i l and Gas, I n c . , as a 

petroleum landman f o r what purpose, s i r ? 

A. To research the t i t l e on the west h a l f of Section 

7, f i n d the ownership, acquire leases and put to g e t h e r a 

d r i l l i n g u n i t f o r the r e - e n t r y of the Carlsbad "7" Number 

1. 

Q. I s t h a t something you have done f o r o t h e r s , 

l o c a t e i n t e r e s t owners and ne g o t i a t e w i t h them i n order t o 

reach v o l u n t a r y agreements? 

A. Yes, s i r , I've been doing t h a t most of my career. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o f i n d i n g these people and 

n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h them, you have proposed t o t h e i n d i v i d u a l s 

s p e c i f i c terms of e i t h e r farmouts, lease or p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

i n t h i s re-entry? 

A. I've sent t o a l l the owners out t h e r e an o i l and 

gas lease which I've o f f e r e d t o enter i n t o w i t h them or 

o f f e r e d them the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a r e - e n t r y . 

Q. Are you knowledgeable about the i d e n t i t y of these 

i n d i v i d u a l s and the i n t e r e s t ownership p a r t i c i p a t i o n f a c t o r 

or c a l c u l a t i o n f o r t h e i r share of produ c t i o n from the we l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I've c a l c u l a t e d t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Frye as an expert 

petroleum landman. 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Frye i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Mr. Frye, l e t ' s look a t what 

i s marked as Applicant's E x h i b i t Number 1 and l e t you 

i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r us. 

A. This i s a p l a t of the west h a l f of Section 7, 

which was o r i g i n a l l y entered i n the Commission records f o r 

the o r i g i n a l p o o l i n g of t h i s s e c t i o n f o r t he d r i l l i n g of 

the w e l l . 

Q. To what purpose d i d you use t h i s p l a t ? 

A. This p l a t was the basis of — t h a t I used t o 

lo c a t e the t r a c t s when I was running t i t l e on each of the 

owners out t h e r e . 

Q. As a r e s u l t of t h a t e f f o r t , do you have an 

opi n i o n as t o what q u a n t i t y of acreage i s contained w i t h i n 

the proposed spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t ' s my b e l i e f a f t e r c a l c u l a t i n g a l l 

t h e i n t e r e s t and a l l of — lo o k i n g a t the pat e n t s , t h a t 

t h e r e are 307, plus or minus, acres i n the west h a l f of 

Section 7. 

Q. So we w i l l know where i t ' s shown on the d i s p l a y , 

f i n d f o r us the o l d C&K Petroleum Carlsbad "7" Number 1 

w e l l . 

A. The l o c a t i o n of the C&K Petroleum "7" Number 1 i s 

lo c a t e d 690 f e e t from the west l i n e and 760 f e e t from the 

south l i n e , which i s depicted by two c i r c l e s and la b e l e d 
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"proposed l o c a t i o n " . 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y f o r us or show us on t h i s 

d i s p l a y the lease t h a t u n d e r l i e s the wellbore? 

A. Yes, s i r , the d r i l l s i t e lease on t h i s t r a c t i s 

300 — was a described 35 acres, which included a l l of the 

southwest q u a r t e r of the southwest q u a r t e r , l e s s t h e Santa 

Catarina Cemetery Association lease, and t h a t ' s the d r i l l 

s i t e . 

Q. Have you obtained a lease from the i n t e r e s t 

owners a t the d r i l l s i t e t r a c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . Merland, I n c . , i s the owners of 

reco r d , and I have acquired an o i l and gas lease from them. 

Q. Merland, I n c . , owns the Minerals? 

A. Yes, s i r , they do. 

Q. Who owns the surface? 

A. Merland, I nc., also owns the surface. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . This i s a t r a c t , then, t h a t has not 

been severed w i t h regards t o surface and minerals? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let me ask you, s i r , t o set aside the p l a t f o r a 

moment and t u r n t o what we have marked as E x h i b i t Number 2. 

This i s a t a b u l a t i o n c o n s i s t i n g of 15 pages. I s t h i s your 

work, s i r ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h i s i s my work. 

Q. What does t h i s represent? 
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A. This represents a t a b u l a t i o n of the owners of 

what I b e l i e v e t o be a l l the i n t e r e s t i n the west h a l f of 

Section 7. I t includes various i n f o r m a t i o n such as t h e i r 

names and addresses, the acreage — the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n 

of the acreage they own, the net acres, the i n t e r e s t i n the 

acres and t h e i r u n i t p a r t i c i p a t i o n based upon acreage 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n . 

Q. Before we t a l k about the d e t a i l s , l e t ' s go across 

the top column of the spreadsheet and have you e x p l a i n t o 

the Examiner what these codes mean. 

A. Okay. Lease Number i s a number t h a t I've 

assigned. I s t a r t e d w i t h lease number 100, so t h e r e aren't 

any numbers less than t h a t . 

Gross Acres i s — the t r a d i t i o n a l e x p l a n a t i o n , 

the number of surface acres i n t h e i r t r a c t . 

I n t e r e s t i s t h e i r i n t e r e s t which i n t h i s case i s 

a decimal, so 1 being 100 percent, anything less than t h a t 

being a decimal. 

Net Acres i s t h e i r gross acres times t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t . 

Their U n i t P a r t i c i p a t i o n i s t h e i r net acres 

d i v i d e d by 307.02. 

The Key — 

Q. That's not a percentage? 

A. No, s i r . 
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Q. That's a decimal i n t e r e s t ? 

A. That's a decimal i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. The Key i s j u s t a way — I t ' s the l a s t name of 

the p a r t y . 

The next column i s how I've designated whether 

they've leased t o me, whether they've agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

or i f we haven't had an answer y e t . 

Of course the Owner i s the owner name. 

Address i s s e l f explanatory, the c i t y , s t a t e and 

z i p . 

And then the l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n i s a d e s c r i p t i o n 

of acreage they own. 

Q. How many d i f f e r e n t t r a c t s or leases were you 

d e a l i n g with? 

A. 298 t r a c t s . 

Q. How d i d you go about determining these were the 

a p p r o p r i a t e owners w i t h the c o r r e c t percentages? 

A. I based my research on the a b s t r a c t s or the 

i n f o r m a t i o n contained i n the a b s t r a c t s of the Guaranty 

T i t l e i n Carlsbad, New Mexico, and the county records of 

the county c l e r k . 

Q. How c u r r e n t i s t h i s information? 

A. This i n f o r m a t i o n — Some of i t i s more c u r r e n t , 

but a l l of i t i s c u r r e n t up t o the end of December. 
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Q. Having determined the ownership w i t h i n the t r a c t , 

what then d i d you do? 

A. Once I — as I determined ownership, I would make 

contact w i t h the owners, o f f e r i n g t o lease t h e i r m inerals, 

proposing a lease term and asking them t o c a l l me, describe 

what we wanted t o do and asked them t o c a l l me i f they had 

any questions. 

Q. S i r , l e t ' s go through some of your 

correspondence. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o what i s marked as A p p l i c a n t 

E x h i b i t Number 3, would you i d e n t i f y and describe t h a t 

l e t t e r ? 

A. E x h i b i t 3 i s a l e t t e r I sent i n e a r l y December — 

i t ' s dated December 3rd — wherein I described what we were 

t r y i n g t o do. And I o f f e r e d — I enclosed a lease i n a 

self-addressed envelope and o f f e r e d t o lease from a l l the 

owners t h a t I knew a t t h a t time. I f they wanted t o lease, 

they were i n s t r u c t e d t o sign i n f r o n t of a notary and then 

r e t u r n i t t o me i n the envelope. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , had you acquired the lease a t the 

d r i l l s i t e from the Merland, I n c . , company? 

A. Merland, I n c . , was the f i r s t lease I acquired. I 

acquired t h a t because I f e l t l i k e i t was c r i t i c a l t o the 

prospect. 
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Q. As p a r t of t h a t lease n e g o t i a t i o n r e l a t i o n s h i p , 

d i d you o b t a i n ownership and c o n t r o l of the e x i s t i n g 

wellbore? 

A. Yes, s i r , I f e l t l i k e i t was important t o c o n t r o l 

the w e l l b o r e , because i t was c r i t i c a l t o our r e - e n t r y . So 

I ne g o t i a t e d w i t h Merland, I n c . , t o acquire s p e c i f i c use of 

the w e l l b o r e f o r our r e - e n t r y purposes, and the e x c l u s i v e 

r i g h t s t o the wellbore. 

Q. As a r e s u l t of the f a c t t h a t the we l l b o r e e x i s t e d 

w i t h i n t h i s lease ownership, you had t o pay more f o r t h a t 

t r a n s a c t i o n or lease than you d i d f o r the other leases? 

A. I f e l t l i k e i t was necessary t o do t h a t , and 

through the course of n e g o t i a t i o n s i t was borne out. 

Q. Apart from t h a t circumstance, d i d you o f f e r 

everyone else the same terms? 

A. Everybody i n the west h a l f of Section 7 was 

o f f e r e d e x a c t l y the same terms t o lease t h e i r m i n e r a l s , 

i n c l u d i n g the C i t y of Carlsbad and other p u b l i c e n t i t i e s . 

Q. Did you o b t a i n leases from the C i t y of Carlsbad? 

A. Yes, s i r , I d i d , from the c i t y c o u n c i l . 

Q. Okay. How d i d you handle the mineral ownership 

u n d e r l y i n g the p u b l i c s t r e e t s ? 

A. I t was my determination, and based upon 

c o n s u l t a t i o n w i t h various a t t o r n e y s , t h a t ownership of the 

minerals u n d e r l y i n g the s t r e e t s , as a matter of — i n New 
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Mexico i s considered to be owned by the adjacent l o t 

owners, and I included each l o t — I included the minerals 

under the streets and alleys as being owned by the adjacent 

l o t owner. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And with that p o s i t i o n , then, you 

negotiated with these people and have obtained leases f o r 

some of these t r a c t s on that basis? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . After the f i r s t l e t t e r , of December 

3rd, what i s the next correspondence t o these i n t e r e s t 

owners? 

A. The next correspondence i s December 10th, and 

tha t was sent t o people who — as I l a t e r discovered t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t . I t ' s essentially a i d e n t i c a l l e t t e r t o the 

e a r l i e r l e t t e r . 

Q. As you continued through the process and updated 

and refined your l i s t , did you provide f u r t h e r 

correspondence to these individuals a f t e r December 10th? 

A. Yes, s i r , I sent a January 4th l e t t e r t o 

addi t i o n a l people as I learned of them. 

Sometimes I•d get — I would learn of a new 

address or a new location, and I would send a follow-up 

l e t t e r t o them and make sure everyone got a chance t o look 

at my proposal. 

Q. Okay. During t h i s process of negotiating, 
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describe f o r us i n a summary way what you were t e l l i n g 

these people. 

A. What I did — Obviously, I sent the l e t t e r and I 

explained what we t r i e d t o do. And a l o t of people would 

c a l l because they didn't f u l l y understand i t , and a l o t of 

these people are not sophisticated o i l and gas people. 

So I made sure that I would s t a r t at the 

beginning. I would say what happened with the w e l l , t h a t 

C&K Petroleum d r i l l e d the well t o the Morrow formation, 

they produced i t f o r a couple of months, tha t they 

determined t h a t production was i n s u f f i c i e n t and plugged the 

well and went about t h e i r business, that my partner and I 

f e l t l i k e there was a zone i n the wel l t h a t could be re ­

entered and maybe produced and that C&K had gone o f f and 

l e f t some gas i n the ground. 

I said, We would l i k e t o lease a l l the minerals 

out there and include them i n the u n i t so that they could 

be included as a royalty owner when we re-entered the w e l l , 

and hopefully produced from the Strawn formation. 

I made sure to t e l l a l l of them tha t t h i s i s not 

l i k e the Beverly H i l l b i l l i e s , that they had very small 

i n t e r e s t s , nobody's going to get very r i c h , and th a t as a 

roy a l t y owner hopefully they would receive enough revenue 

t o buy dinner a couple of times a year. 

That was the basic story, and i f they had more 
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questions I c e r t a i n l y answered them. 

Q. The next E x h i b i t , 6, i s correspondence dated 

March 22nd of 1994. What's the basis f o r sending t h i s 

l e t t e r ? 

A. By March we determined t h a t we had leased most of 

what we were going t o get, and we f e l t l i k e the people t h a t 

were remaining out there wanted t o p a r t i c i p a t e , or a t l e a s t 

have t h a t o p t i o n . 

So we sent a l e t t e r asking a l l of them t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e — we sent i t by c e r t i f i e d m a i l so t h a t we 

could determine t h a t they received i t — and asking them t o 

j o i n us i n the w e l l . 

Q. And how d i d you send t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. We d i d send i t by c e r t i f i e d m a i l , r e t u r n r e c e i p t 

requested. 

Q. Attached t o t h a t l e t t e r are what, s i r ? 

A. The copies of the green cards t h a t were r e t u r n e d 

by the post o f f i c e w i t h the r e c e i v i n g p a r t y ' s s i g n a t u r e . 

Q. Now, t h i s would have gone out t o more p a r t i e s 

than you received green cards back? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. So you've sent i t t o everyone t h a t was unleased 

a t t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. And the documentation shows only those t h a t 
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a c t u a l l y got the notice? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Let's t u r n now t o E x h i b i t Number 

7. We've gone from March 22nd. E x h i b i t 7 i s a l e t t e r of 

A p r i l 22nd? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What's the reason you sent t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. By A p r i l 22nd, we hadn't heard back from many of 

the p a r t i e s . You know, we had only heard back from a few 

of them as t o whether they wanted t o p a r t i c i p a t e or not. 

So I sent another l e t t e r t r y i n g t o p o i n t out how 

important i t was and t h a t they needed t o please make a 

de c i s i o n and r e t u r n t h e i r — and n o t i f y me of what they 

wanted t o do. 

Q. Were you o f f e r i n g these p a r t i e s the o p p o r t u n i t y 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the well? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. That was an a l t e r n a t i v e s o l u t i o n t o leasing? 

A. Yes, s i r . I n my l e t t e r I o f f e r e d them the 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e and t o — I f they s t i l l d i d n ' t 

want t o p a r t i c i p a t e , I o f f e r e d t o lease from them again. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As p a r t of t h i s correspondence, d i d 

you provide these p o t e n t i a l p a r t i c i p a n t s w i t h a proposed 

AFE and an i n d i c a t i o n of the costs t h a t you were working 

w i t h so t h a t they would have some range of ex p e c t a t i o n on 
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the costs? 

A. Yes, s i r . The f i r s t l e t t e r , E x h i b i t 6, the March 

22nd l e t t e r , included an AFE w i t h the f u l l cost o f the r e ­

e n t r y . 

Q. Okay. Did you advise them of your i n t e n t t o 

charge the i n t e r e s t owners w i t h a v a l u a t i o n of the e x i s t i n g 

wellbore? 

A. Yes, s i r , we included i n t h a t l e t t e r t he f a c t 

t h a t we would expect them t o pay t h e i r share of our 

estimated value of the wellbore, being $95,000. 

Q. Mr. Naumann has provided you w i t h h i s estimate of 

the value of the e x i s t i n g wellbore? 

A. Yes, s i r , he has. 

Q. And t h a t was the $95,000 and you communicated 

t h a t t o a l l these people? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , you sent them an itemized AFE of the 

r e - e n t r y recompletion costs? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n now t o the next t o p i c , and t h a t 

i s a n o t i f i c a t i o n . I t ' s marked E x h i b i t 8, and i t ' s dated 

May 4th. Describe what you've done here. 

A. This i s a copy of a l e t t e r dated May 4 t h , which 

was prepared by Mr. K e l l a h i n , s t a t i n g the n o t i c e o f 

compulsory p o o l i n g . We mailed i t t o a l l of the owners who 
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we knew of t h a t had not made an e l e c t i o n t o p a r t i c i p a t e or 

lease. 

We sent the l e t t e r c e r t i f i e d m a i l t o a l l the 

p a r t i e s , i t described the f a c t t h a t we were going t o have 

t h i s hearing, t h a t they were welcome t o come and present 

evidence and p a r t i c i p a t e i n the procedure. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h i s m a i l i n g went out of your 

o f f i c e , out o f — under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes. I pers o n a l l y mailed a l l of these c e r t i f i e d 

m a i l , r e t u r n r e c e i p t requested. 

Q. And were they mailed more than 20 days p r i o r t o 

the hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r , they were. They were mailed, most of 

them, on May 6th. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o the conventional green cards t h a t 

you've attached copies o f , there i s a n o t i c e t h a t ' s a 

l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t . The f i r s t r e c e i p t a f t e r t he n o t i c e 

l e t t e r , e x p l a i n t o the Examiner what t h a t i s . 

A. This i s a copy — This i s f o r a r e g i s t e r e d 

l e t t e r . One of the owners, Carlos Orosco, l i v e s i n 

England, and you can't send c e r t i f i e d m a i l t o England; you 

have t o send r e g i s t e r e d m a i l . 

I d i d the same on the f i r s t l e t t e r , o f f e r i n g t o 

ask them t o p a r t i c i p a t e . His card was re t u r n e d . As of 

now, I have not received h i s card back f o r t h i s r e g i s t e r e d 
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m a i l ; however, he has c a l l e d and l e f t a message on my voice 

m a i l , so I b e l i e v e he has received i t . 

Q. Let me t u r n t o E x h i b i t 9. Having gone through 

a l l t h i s e f f o r t t o consolidate on a v o l u n t a r y basis the 

various i n t e r e s t owners, do you now have a t a b u l a t i o n of 

those i n t e r e s t owners f o r which you have not y e t been able 

t o o b t a i n an agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . This E x h i b i t 9 represents only t h e 

p a r t i e s who have not leased or have not pa i d t h e i r share of 

the w e l l cost and signed c o n t r a c t s y e t . 

Q. There i s a code. I f you read along the f i r s t 

column and a f t e r the word "Key" and before the word 

"Owner", there's another column. What do those codes mean? 

A. There are four of them i n t h i s column, f o u r 

d i f f e r e n t codes. 

The "N" means I've had no response but I have a 

green card from them. 

The "U" means t h a t I apparently have a bad 

address and have been unable t o l o c a t e the Party. 

"P" says they have agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e , but 

they have y e t t o pay t h e i r share. 

And "F" means, I b e l i e v e , they w i l l agree t o farm 

out, however we do not have formal agreement y e t . 

Q. With regards t o those addresses over the course 

of your a c t i v i t y f o r which you got an envelope back and i t 
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was obvious to you that you were not communicating w i t h 

them, what did you do to see i f you could get a better 

address? 

A. I — I n each case, when I got a card back, I went 

back to the tax o f f i c e , t r i e d to f i n d a newer, more recent 

address, went to the post o f f i c e — or to the phone book to 

look f o r the name and another possible address. 

I f those two f a i l e d and didn't t u r n up a newer 

address, then I called d i f f e r e n t people i n Carlsbad who had 

s i m i l a r l a s t names and, i n some cases, people who were 

o f f s e t owners, owned adjacent l o t s or something l i k e t h a t , 

t r y i n g t o locate some of these par t i e s . 

Most of the ones that were not located do not 

l i v e there, they reserved the minerals sometime back. 

Q. Let's deal with some specif i c issues, and perhaps 

we can use t h i s Exhibit 9 to i l l u s t r a t e t h a t . 

I f y o u ' l l turn t o the second to the l a s t page, 

and i f y o u ' l l read down towards the middle of page number 

6, f i n d the lease that you've numbered as lease 381. 

A. Okay. 

Q. That has to do with a town l o t number 9 that i s 

shown under Clydine Wiley? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. For your information, as you know, the Division 

has received correspondence from Ms. Wiley's attorney 
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i n d i c a t i n g t h a t there were two a d d i t i o n a l p a r t i e s t h a t 

owned minerals w i t h i n l o t 9 t h a t had not received n o t i c e . 

Describe f o r us what's occurred. 

A. I n t h i s case — You may note t h a t many of the 

addresses are very long and have a l o t of names. They're 

j o i n t ownership. 

I n t h i s case, Clydine K. Lara Wiley should have 

been — We removed the other names and intended t o put " e t 

a l . " a f t e r i t , and i t was a scr i v e n e r e r r o r . We f e l t l i k e 

we were g i v i n g them a l l n o t i c e when we were n o t i f y i n g her 

t h a t — a t her address, which was the address on the deed, 

but we should have had i t labeled, her, her b r o t h e r and her 

mother. 

Q. Other than t h a t c l e r i c a l e r r o r w i t h regards t o 

t r a c t 381, are you aware of any other t r a c t s f o r which you 

have not attempted t o n o t i f y people t h a t you knew had an 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. I b e l i e v e — I r e a l l y b e l i e v e we have n o t i f i e d 

everybody f u l l y . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The i n t e r e s t owners on E x h i b i t 9 are 

unleased mineral owners, are they not? 

A. With the exception of Enron O i l and Gas and OXY 

U.S.A. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and those are the l a s t two e n t r i e s 

shown on here, and you're about t o complete t r a n s a c t i o n s 
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w i t h both of these companies, are you not? 

A. I b e l i e v e so. 

And t h e r e i s one other exception: J.R. Rowan, 

In c . , has j u s t sent me correspondence. J.R. Rowan and h i s 

w i f e own the minerals; they lease t o J.R. Rowan, I n c . , and 

in t e n d t o p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h t h a t lease. 

Q. Do you have a recommended s o l u t i o n f o r the 

Examiner w i t h regards of how you and your p a r t n e r want t o 

handle the i n t e r e s t owners i n Tract 381, Ms. Wiley and her 

b r o t h e r and the i n d i v i d u a l w i t h the l i f e estate? What 

would you l i k e t o do? 

A. I t h i n k i n t h a t case t h a t i t wouldn't be 

unreasonable f o r us t o continue t o attempt t o n e g o t i a t e an 

agreement whereby they would e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e or lease. 

But i n the f a i l u r e of t h a t , my pa r t n e r and I 

would be p e r f e c t l y w i l l i n g t o pay t h e i r share. I t ' s an 

extremely small i n t e r e s t , and I don't t h i n k t h a t would be 

unreasonable. 

Q. Well, and t h a t ' s the best p o s s i b l e w o r l d : You 

pay t h e i r share, and i f there's p r o d u c t i o n they get t h e i r 

share f r e e of cost? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Other than Ms. Wiley's issue, the 

D i v i s i o n has received correspondence from Mr. B i l l Taylor 

i n which he r a i s e s the issue of paying a p r o p o r t i o n a t e 
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share of the value of the e x i s t i n g w e l l b o r e . Are you aware 

of t h a t correspondence? 

A. Yes, s i r , I received a copy of t h a t . 

Q. Do you have any i n f o r m a t i o n or documentation t o 

i n d i c a t e t h a t Mr. Taylor i n f a c t a c t u a l l y p a i d f o r a share 

of the C&K w e l l when i t was d r i l l e d ? 

A. The only i n f o r m a t i o n I have t h a t leads t o t h a t i s 

h i s saying he had paid h i s share. However, my notes 

i n d i c a t e t h a t he had leased h i s minerals and was included 

as a r o y a l t y owner i n the i n i t i a l u n i t . 

Q. Can you take E x h i b i t Number 1, the p l a t of a l l 

the t r a c t s , and help us i d e n t i f y what you understand t o be 

the l o c a t i o n of the mineral ownership of Mr. Taylor? 

A. Okay. Lot 15, Block E. He 1s i n Lot 15 of Block 

E, which i s — I don't know i f you can see the — I t would 

f a l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of — 

Q. Hang on j u s t a minute, w e ' l l f i g u r e i t out. 

A. Right here. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I've had t h e witness 

p o i n t out t o me what the t r a c t i s , and I've c i r c l e d i t i n 

red on my copy of the d i s p l a y . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Have you had discussions w i t h 

Mr. Taylor? 

A. Yes, s i r , I've t a l k e d t o Mr. Taylor on the 

telephone. 
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Q. Do you as a petroleum landman have any question 

about h i s r i g h t , t i t l e and i n t e r e s t t o share i n p r o d u c t i o n 

from the Strawn? 

A. Other than the f a c t t h a t he seemed t o be 

concerned about the q u a l i t y of h i s t i t l e , I d i d not. 

Q. Okay. He r a i s e s f o r you the issue of whether or 

not he should have t o compensate you f o r h i s p r o p o r t i o n a t e 

share of your value of the e x i s t i n g w e l l b o r e ; t h a t was h i s 

issue, was i t not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Apart from t h a t issue, he sa i d t h a t he may want 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the well? 

A. He discussed t h a t as a p o s s i b i l i t y . He al s o 

would p r e f e r t h a t we leased a t a much higher r o y a l t y and 

bonus. 

Q. What i s h i s net i n t e r e s t i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Mr. Taylor has a .000632 i n the 307-acre u n i t . 

Q. Are you aware of any other i n t e r e s t owner t h a t 

has come forward t o you t h a t ' s i n a s i m i l a r p o s i t i o n as Mr. 

Taylor? 

I n other words, the a s s e r t i o n t h a t he has p a i d 

f o r t he e x i s t i n g wellbore when i t was d r i l l e d i n 1977 and 

t h e r e f o r e f e e l s t h a t he should not be r e q u i r e d t o pay again 

f o r t he re-entry? 

A. Mr. Taylor i s the only p a r t y t h a t ' s mentioned 
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t h a t as a p o s s i b i l i t y . 

Q. Without committing you t o a p o s i t i o n and have t o 

n i g g l e over how t o resolve t h a t l e g a l issue, what do you 

propose t o do w i t h regards t o Mr. Taylor's i n t e r e s t ? 

A. My part n e r and I have discussed i t , and i f Mr. 

Taylor can document i n any manner t h a t he's pa i d h i s share 

of the w e l l costs, we would be glad t o — we would, i n 

e f f e c t , c a r r y h i s share of the w e l l cost. 

Q. Of the value of the — 

A. — the wellbore. 

Q. — the e x i s t i n g w e l l and t h a t he would be charged 

only w i t h h i s p r o p o r t i o n a t e share f o r the f u t u r e costs f o r 

the r e - e n t r y and completion i n t o the Strawn? 

A. That's r i g h t , f u t u r e costs beginning w i t h the r e ­

e n t r y . 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner w i t h 

regards t o what overhead r a t e s you propose t o use f o r t h i s 

operation? 

A. I be l i e v e we propose t o use $3500 as a d r i l l i n g -

w e l l r a t e and $350 as a producing-well r a t e . 

Q. The Strawn i s approximately what depth i n t h i s 

area, Mr. Frye? 

A. I t ' s j u s t over 10,000 f e e t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, the E rns t and Young 

t a b u l a t i o n f o r 1993 shows t h a t the monthly d r i l l i n g w e l l 
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r a t e f o r w e l l s a t t h i s depth i s $5462, the average monthly 

producing w e l l r a t e i s $548. 

So t h i s i s s u b s t a n t i a l l y below average as 

t a b u l a t e d by the accountants. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) A f t e r t h i s hearing, w i l l you 

continue t o ne g o t i a t e and discuss and o b t a i n leases from 

p a r t i e s t h a t have not y e t leased w i t h you? 

A. I be l i e v e we w i l l . I b e l i e v e t h e r e are several 

p a r t i e s t h a t w i l l e l e c t t o go ahead and lease. 

Q. At some p o i n t , however, you simply have t o stop 

the process and you want the D i v i s i o n t o issue you a 

p o o l i n g order so t h a t you can u t i l i z e t h a t i n the event 

t h a t you can't o b t a i n leases? 

A. Yes, we would very much l i k e f o r the Commission 

t o enter i n t o a p o o l i n g order. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Frye. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t s 1 

through 9. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 1 through 9 w i l l be 

admitted as evidence. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you know the order number t h a t 

approved the o r i g i n a l pooling? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we have copies o f t h a t . 

I t ' s Order Number R-5451. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Frye, I'm a l i t t l e b i t curious and would l i k e 

you t o go i n t o a l i t t l e b i t more on how you've a l l o c a t e d 

the m i n e r a l i n t e r e s t s underneath the s t r e e t s again. 

A. What I d i d i s , I went on a l o t - b y - l o t case, and I 

c a l c u l a t e d — I used t h i s p l a t , which i s also the same p l a t 

t h a t the C i t y of Carlsbad uses f o r t h e i r taxes and t h e i r 

s t r e e t s and a l l e y s . And where I could I went back t o — i f 

I couldn't read the dimensions of the l o t s o f f the p l a t , I 

went back t o the o r i g i n a l s u b d i v i s i o n s , I c a l c u l a t e d 

b a s i c a l l y the acreage f o r each l o t out t h e r e and summed 

them up and came up w i t h the 307, which, when I went back 

t o v e r i f y t h a t the patents were i n f a c t a substandard 

s e c t i o n , i t proved i t out. 

Q. So you j u s t more or less s p l i t the s t r e e t i n h a l f 

and then a l l o c a t e d t o the i n t e r e s t owner? 

A. I f a l o t was, say, 100 f e e t by 50 f e e t and th e r e 

was a 2 0-foot a l l e y on one side and a 60-foot s t r e e t on the 

oth e r , I would f i g u r e the area as being 140 by 50 square 

f e e t . 

Q. Are th e r e any others where you could not do t h a t , 

where t h e r e weren't i n t e r e s t owners adjacent t o t h e s t r e e t ? 

A. A l l the t r a c t s are against the s t r e e t somewhere, 

and the corner t r a c t s , the corner l o t s , o b v i o u s l y , were 
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against two s t r e e t s and an a l l e y . 

Q. Okay. This was o r i g i n a l l y — You obtained the 

lease from Merland; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Merland, I n c . , yes, s i r . 

Q. How much acreage d i d t h a t lease contain? 

A. We described 35.5 acres. And i n f a c t , i t 

contains less because of the — t h a t southwest southwest 

corner contains only 3 6.5 acres t o t a l , and Merland, I n c . , 

had already deeded out t o what i s now Santa Catarina 

Cemetery A s s o c i a t i o n . 

Q. Have you c a l c u l a t e d what percentage of i n t e r e s t 

you have consolidated a t t h i s p o int? 

A. Yes, s i r . On the back of E x h i b i t 2, on the l a s t 

page, page 15, I have a breakdown by the v a r i o u s categories 

we described l a t e r , down i n the bottom l e f t corner. I t ' s 

the one t h a t looks l i k e t h i s . 

Q. According t o t h i s , you're t r y i n g t o f o r c e - p o o l 

about 12 percent of the i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And about one percent was unknown? 

A. Unknown ownership, yes, s i r . 

Q. Unknown ownership, okay. 

A. Or — I say unknown ownership; t h a t ' s not f a i r . 

There are two very small t r a c t s t h a t I cannot determine who 

owns them. And the remainder are unknown l o c a t i o n ; I can't 
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l o c a t e them. 

Q. Have you — Since you found out about the Wiley 

i n t e r e s t , have you been i n contact w i t h those other 

p a r t i e s ? 

A. With — No, I haven't. We found out about t h a t , 

I b e l i e v e , l a s t Friday, and I have y e t t o contact them. 

A c t u a l l y , I found about i t Monday. 

Q. Do you in t e n d t o contact those p a r t i e s ? 

A. Oh, yes, I do. 

Q. And i t ' s your testimony t h a t you w i l l c a r r y those 

i n t e r e s t s or pay f o r those i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e Clydine K. Lara Wiley was adequately 

n o t i f i e d . I b e l i e v e her mother who has a l i f e e s t a t e , and 

her b r o t h e r who has a h a l f i n t e r e s t as the remainderman, I 

be l i e v e they d i d not receive proper n o t i c e , and I would 

c a r r y those, yes, s i r . 

Q. Carry — Not the Clydine Wiley i n t e r e s t ? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t Clydine K. Lara Wiley owns a 

remainderman's i n t e r e s t i n one h a l f of t h a t .000403 and 

t h a t her bro t h e r owns a remainderman i n t e r e s t i n the other 

h a l f of .000403. And so I — But I b e l i e v e her i n t e r e s t 

has been p r o p e r l y n o t i f i e d . 

Q. So you would c a r r y h a l f of the .000403? 

A. As a remainderman, and then a l l of i t f o r the 

l i f e e s t a t e of the mother. 
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Yeah, Constancio A. Lara i s the mother — Excuse 

me, Josefina Lara i s the mother. 

Cj. I would appreciate i t i f you would keep the 

D i v i s i o n apprised of your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h these p a r t i e s 

t h a t you haven't i d e n t i f i e d , maybe send us copies of the 

correspondence t h a t you have w i t h these p a r t i e s . 

A. The f u t u r e correspondence? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Sure. 

Q. The one p a r t y , I'm s o r r y , t h a t you s a i d l i v e d i n 

England — 

A. Yes, s i r , Carlos Orosco. 

Q. — d i d you say t h a t he had received both the 

o r i g i n a l o f f e r t o p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. He received the — I know f o r i t — w i t h o u t a 

doubt t h a t he received the i n i t i a l o f f e r t o please 

p a r t i c i p a t e , the f i r s t c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r . 

Q. Okay. 

A. The second one I be l i e v e he's received, j u s t 

because he responded about the time he should have g o t t e n 

i t , but I haven't gotten h i s card back y e t . 

Q. The second l e t t e r being the — ? 

A. The n o t i c e of the hearing. 

Q. But you said you had something on your voice 

mail? 
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A. He c a l l e d and asked me t o r e t u r n h i s c a l l , and he 

l e f t a number, and I t r i e d i t and couldn't get through. I 

t r i e d , I t h i n k , nine v a r i a t i o n s i n the number w i t h v a r i o u s 

country codes and county codes and was unable t o ever get 

through. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Frye, I j u s t have one question. Do you know 

the amount of co n s i d e r a t i o n t h a t was pai d t o Merland, I n c . , 

t o o b t a i n the lease from Merland? 

A. Yes, I do. I bought a — I got a sho r t - t e r m 

lease from Merland, I n c . , and I paid them a higher r o y a l t y 

than I d i d anyone el s e , but I d i d not pay any bonus. 

MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l we have, 

Mr. Frye. The witness may be excused. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you very much. 

MR. KELLAHIN: C a l l a t t h i s time Mr. Jack 

Naumann. 

HENRY JACK NAUMANN. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Naumann, would you please s t a t e your name and 
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occupation? 

A. Henry Jack Naumann. I'm a g e o l o g i s t and o i l and 

gas operator i n Midland. 

Q. Summarize f o r us your education, s i r . 

A. I have a bachelor of science degree from Texas 

Tech U n i v e r s i t y i n geology. 

Q. What i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h Naumann O i l and 

Gas, Inc.? 

A. I'm the president and sole owner. 

Q. With regards t o t h i s p r o j e c t , what are you t r y i n g 

t o do? 

A. I'm t r y i n g t o e s t a b l i s h gas pr o d u c t i o n out of the 

Strawn formation. 

Q. And i s t h i s something t h a t you have done before 

i n other formations, l o o k i n g f o r w e l l s t o re-enter? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I've done numerous d i f f e r e n t r e ­

e n t r i e s , mainly i n Texas. The l a s t one I d i d i n New Mexico 

was j u s t n o r t h of Carlsbad. I t was also i n the Strawn 

f o r m a t i o n , a very s i m i l a r s i t u a t i o n t o t h i s , almost an 

i d e n t i c a l zone. 

Q. When and where d i d you o b t a i n your degree i n 

geology? 

A. Texas Tech. 

Q. I n what year, s i r ? 

A. 1979. 
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Q. How long have you been a p r a c t i c a l o i l and gas 

operator? 

A. Since 1986. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Naumann as an expert 

g e o l o g i s t and as a p r a c t i c a l o i l and gas operator. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Naumann i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Before we look a t your 

d i s p l a y s , describe f o r us your o b j e c t i v e , the concept. 

What's the plan? 

A. Well, the basic plan here i s t o r e - e n t e r the o l d 

C&K Carlsbad Number 1 "7" Well, which was d r i l l e d t o the 

Morrow formation. I t was a marginal producer out of the 

Morrow. I b e l i e v e i t produced f o r less than a year. I t 

was plugged and abandoned. The casing t h a t was recoverable 

was c u t and p u l l e d from the wellbore. 

My plan i s t o re-enter the o l d w e l l bore, d r i l l 

t h e plugs out, attempt t o t i e back onto the c u t o f f casing, 

cement i t i n place, and p e r f o r a t e , a c i d i z e and attempt t o 

e s t a b l i s h p r o d u c t i o n from the Strawn carbonate. 

Q. Have you made a geologic i n v e s t i g a t i o n of your 

o p p o r t u n i t y i n the Strawn zone? 

A. Yes, I've studied the Strawn out here, a l l 

throughout Eddy County, i n the Carlsbad area, and t h i s 

p r o j e c t was based upon, again, my knowledge and study of 

the Strawn and the success t h a t I had t o t h e n o r t h of town 
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and w i t h analog producers t h a t we have o f f t o the east of 

t h i s , of the Carlsbad Number 1 1 17" Well. 

Q. Have you prepared any geologic d i s p l a y s of the 

Strawn? 

A. Yes, the E x h i b i t Number 10. 

Q. Does t h i s represent your work? 

A. Yes, t h i s does. 

Q. Describe f o r us what i t shows. 

A. Okay. E x h i b i t Number 10 i s an isopach or a 

thickn e s s map of what I'm c a l l i n g the T h i r d Strawn zone. 

I t ' s t he t h i r d carbonate t h a t ' s present from the t o p of the 

Strawn formation. 

This i s our main o b j e c t i v e on the r e - e n t r y of the 

Carlsbad Number 1 "7" Well. And t h i s map i l l u s t r a t e s a 

p o r o s i t y c u t o f f of f i v e percent or grea t e r p o r o s i t y which 

i s present, and t h i s i s from a n a l y s i s of the downhole open-

hole logs on these w e l l s . 

I t ' s my opinion t h a t production occurs from f i v e 

percent or greater t o make a commercial f o r m a t i o n w i t h i n 

the Strawn formation. 

This map represents the t o t a l t h ickness of t h a t 

zone. 

Q. I f we look a t Section 7 and look a t the southwest 

q u a r t e r , i t w i l l be p o i n t A on the A-to-A* c r o s s - s e c t i o n 

we're going t o show i n a minute, but i t ' s a w e l l you have 
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i d e n t i f i e d as p o t e n t i a l l y having s i x f e e t of net pay? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. With a p o r o s i t y greater than f i v e percent? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Have there been any other attempts t o produce the 

Strawn gas zone i n the immediate v i c i n i t y ? 

A. The nearest completions are the ones t h a t I've 

got designated w i t h green c i r c l e s around those. Those were 

Strawn producers. 

Q. I f we look around the wellbore s i t e , though, a l l 

these gas-well symbols, were those gas w e l l s deep enough t o 

have i n t e r s e c t e d the Strawn zone? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . Those were a l l Morrow 

t e s t s , and they d i d d r i l l through the Strawn f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Were any of those ever produced out o f the 

Strawn? 

A. No, none of those were. 

Q. How would you i d e n t i f y the l e v e l of r i s k of 

o b t a i n i n g commercial production out of the Strawn zone? 

A. Well, there's several r i s k s t h a t we're going t o 

look a t i n here. Number one i s the r e - e n t r y i t s e l f . The 

r e - e n t r i e s are obviously a very r i s k y business. We have 

sev e r a l t h i n g s which I ' l l comment on here l a t e r , as f a r as 

the r i s k w i t h the r e - e n t r y . 

The g e o l o g i c a l r i s k , my map here i n d i c a t e s t h a t 
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we have p o t e n t i a l p o r o s i t y development across the west h a l f 

o f Section 7. However, we have no i n d i c a t i o n , no c o n t r o l 

up t o the n o r t h . 

The g e o l o g i c a l r i s k t h a t we're d e a l i n g w i t h here 

i s the a r e a l extent of the r e s e r v o i r . We could be d e a l i n g 

w i t h a very small r e s e r v o i r which could p o t e n t i a l l y g i v e 

gas up, but of noncommercial r a t e s . 

Q. Go i n t o Section 8 and the n o r t h h a l f of 17. 

Those were the th r e e w e l l s t h a t d i d produce Strawn gas? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t i s separated from your w e l l by a w e l l i n 

the east h a l f , east h a l f of 7 and has one fo o t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , E x h i b i t 

Number 11, and s p e c i f i c a l l y look a t t h i s zone of i n t e r e s t . 

How have you i d e n t i f i e d your t a r g e t zone on the 

cross-section? I s there a c o l o r code? 

A. Yes. I f you n o t i c e , the zone, the o b j e c t i v e 

zone, i s colored i n blue. And I've h i g h l i g h t e d the 

p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r than f i v e percent i n orange; i t ' s c o l o r e d 

i n orange. 

Q. I s the r e any inherent d i f f i c u l t y or complexity 

t h a t challenge you as a g e o l o g i s t t o using the q u a l i t y or 

type of l o g f o r the Carlsbad "7" Well i n order t o make your 

analysis? 
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A. Yes, we have two d i f f e r e n t types of p o r o s i t y logs 

t h a t I've got present here on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n . 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y , these are the only logs t h a t were run across 

these w e l l s . 

Our o b j e c t i v e w e l l , the C&K Carlsbad 1-7, was 

logged w i t h an acoustic v e l o c i t y l o g , which b a s i c a l l y 

i d e n t i f i e s primary p o r o s i t y . This i s not a great t o o l f o r 

the Strawn out i n through here, and as you can see i t does 

not i d e n t i f y , j u s t what appears t o be an extremely t h i c k 

zone. 

So t h e r e i s a r i s k as f a r as we're l o o k i n g a t 

th e r e , as f a r as the q u a l i t y t h a t we have. 

Q. The lo g i s s u f f i c i e n t t h a t you can c o r r e l a t e t h i s 

zone and a t l e a s t i d e n t i f y i t as a Strawn t h a t i s 

c o r r e l a t i v e t o the Strawn on the other w e l l s i n the cross-

section? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I f you n o t i c e on the cross-

s e c t i o n , again, what I've i d e n t i f i e d t h e r e i n the heavy 

black i s Carlsbad Strawn pay, the t h i r d Strawn zone, which 

i s the thickness map of the isopach, t h a t i t does c o r r e l a t e 

t o the producing w e l l s o f f t o the east. 

Q. And t h a t i s the primary best p o t e n t i a l i n the r e ­

e n t r y , i s l o o k i n g a t t h i s t h i r d zone, i f you w i l l , of the 

Strawn? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . That's the one and only 
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o b j e c t i v e t h a t we r e a l l y have w i t h i n t h i s w e l l b o r e . 

Q. I n terms of a percentage, what would you assign 

as the r i s k t o the geologic component of the r e s e r v o i r ? 

A. At l e a s t 200 percent. I would f e e l t h a t i t would 

be higher, a c t u a l l y , as f a r as the g e o l o g i c a l r i s k goes. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the mechanical r i s k , the r i s k 

i n v o l v e d i n a c t u a l l y doing t h i s work. 

Have you prepared a schematic t h a t shows us the 

c u r r e n t c o n f i g u r a t i o n of the wellbore? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s E x h i b i t Number 12. 

Q. Describe f o r us what t h i s shows. 

A. This i s a schematic of the wellbore as i t i s 

s i t u a t e d today. This was taken from the New Mexico O i l and 

Gas Commission records as provided by C&K from the 

i n c e p t i o n of d r i l l i n g the w e l l t o the date t h a t i t was 

plugged. 

Q. When C&K abandoned t h i s w e l l , describe f o r us 

using t h i s i l l u s t r a t i o n what they d i d t o abandon the w e l l . 

A. The f i r s t t h i n g t h a t C&K d i d i s , they attempted 

t o r e t r i e v e t h e i r 5-1/2-inch casing, which was the 

pro d u c t i o n casing set i n the w e l l t o produce the Morrow. 

They attempted t o shoot t h i s o f f a t 10,000 f e e t and found 

t h a t they could not f r e e the casing, which was p o s s i b l y due 

t o cement. There i s no bond log t h a t i s a v a i l a b l e on t h i s 

w e l l . 
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They then — Since they could not p u l l t he casing 

f r e e , they then went up t o a p o i n t a t 762 0 f e e t , shot and 

s u c c e s s f u l l y p u l l e d 7620 f o o t of 5-1/2-inch casing from the 

w e l l b o r e . 

At t h a t p o i n t , they then set the r e q u i r e d plugs, 

which were f o u r , which are i d e n t i f i e d on the schematic, and 

su c c e s s f u l l y plugged and abandoned the w e l l . 

Q. Have you u t i l i z e d D i v i s i o n records t o c a l c u l a t e 

what i n your o p i n i o n i s the top of the cement i n the 

wellbore? 

A. Yes, a c t u a l l y I had a r e s e r v o i r — a d r i l l i n g 

engineer c a l c u l a t e the recorded volumes as r e p o r t e d by C&K 

f o r t h i s cement and the borehole volumes as i d e n t i f i e d on 

the c a l i p e r logs of the downhole logs, and he came up w i t h 

an approximate c a l c u l a t e d top of the cement of 9000 f e e t . 

Q. With C&K having p u l l e d the 5-1/2-inch casing a t 

approximately 762 0 — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — what i s the s t a t u s of your w e l l b o r e from t h e r e 

on up t o the surface? 

A. From there t o the surface we have an open-hole 

gap, from 7620 t o 2625. That depth i s where the l a s t 

casing was set and l e f t i n the hole, which i s 10-3/4-inch, 

which i s remaining. 

So we have a gap, an open-hole gap, from 2625 t o 
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7620. There are f o u r plugs from t h a t p o i n t up t o the top 

of t h e surface of the wellbore. 

Q. As an operator, Mr. Naumann, i d e n t i f y f o r us the 

areas of p o t e n t i a l r i s k t h a t you face i n r e - e n t e r i n g t h i s 

w e l l and e s t a b l i s h i n g a t l e a s t the o p p o r t u n i t y t o t e s t the 

Strawn. 

A. Well, the g r e a t e s t r i s k t h a t we're going t o deal 

i n through here — There 1s several. 

The f i r s t i s , once we d r i l l through these i n i t i a l 

plugs which are s i t u a t e d i n s i d e the surface casing, we have 

two plugs which are s i t u a t e d i n s i d e the open hole a t 5000-

f o o t range. There's an obvious r i s k of stabbing and 

g e t t i n g r e a l i g n e d or not al i g n e d w i t h i n the w e l l b o r e and 

a c t u a l l y going o f f i n the formation. And once t h a t occurs, 

i t ' s extremely d i f f i c u l t t o get back i n t o the w e l l b o r e . 

The second t h i n g i s t o t i e back onto t h e shot o f f 

casing. That can be somewhat d i f f i c u l t a t times. I t 

re q u i r e s several days of d e l i c a t e work t o attempt t o dress 

the top of the stub t o make i t s u f f i c i e n t where we could 

attempt t o t i e back on w i t h a d d i t i o n a l 5-inch casing. 

The t h i r d r i s k t h a t we're d e a l i n g w i t h i s the 

spot a t 10,000 f o o t where they attempted t o shoot the 

casing o f f . We have no idea what the s i t u a t i o n of t h a t i s . 

I t could be a collapsed casing; we j u s t don't know. We 

could s u c c e s s f u l l y t i e on a t 7620 and f i n d out a t 10,000 
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f e e t . That's as f a r as we can go do a collapsed s i t u a t i o n . 

So t h a t ' s obviously an inherent r i s k . 

Q. Do you have an opi n i o n i n terms of a percentage, 

the l e v e l of r i s k t h a t you're undertaking and assuming as 

an operator f o r the mechanical p o r t i o n , r e - e s t a b l i s h i n g t he 

o p p o r t u n i t y i n the Strawn? 

A. Yes, I f e e l a t l e a s t 2 00 percent as f a r as the 

r i s k of the r e - e n t r y . 

Q. Have you made an i n v e s t i g a t i o n of what the f u t u r e 

costs are t o take the w e l l as i t e x i s t s now and attempt t o 

e s t a b l i s h production? 

A. Yes, I've prepared an A u t h o r i t y f o r Expenditure, 

which i s l i s t e d as E x h i b i t Number 13, and t h i s i s an 

estimated cost. We put approximately a f i v e - t o t e n -

percent contingency onto t h i s . 

This AFE c a l l s f o r $330,230 t o s u c c e s s f u l l y r e ­

enter, t i e back on and e s t a b l i s h p r o d u c t i o n w i t h i n the 

Strawn form a t i o n . 

Q. Apart from the value of the e x i s t i n g w e l l b o r e , 

then, E x h i b i t 13 represents f u t u r e costs? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s t h i s the same e x h i b i t t h a t Mr. Frye has 

c i r c u l a t e d t o a l l the p o t e n t i a l p a r t i c i p a n t s i n the w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

Q. Summarize f o r us the costs. 
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A. B a s i c a l l y you have your i n i t i a l damages as f a r as 

your surface, your l o c a t i o n , your r e - e n t r y , which i s l i s t e d 

t h e r e as a d r i l l i n g footage r a t e , which a c t u a l l y we don't 

have a d r i l l i n g r i g out here, but a r e - e n t r y r i g , which i s 

done on an h o u r l y or d a i l y basis. 

You have any a d d i t i o n a l d r i l l i n g cost t h a t ' s over 

and above the c o n t r a c t , t h a t I agree w i t h , w i t h the 

c o n t r a c t o r s , b i t cost, f u e l cost, any type of mud or 

chemicals t h a t ' s r e q u i r e d t o p o t e n t i a l l y get us a l i t t l e 

e a s ier down i n t o the wellbore. 

We have cement cost, casing c o s t , t e s t c o s t . 

We'll have t o go down and t e s t the zone a t 10,000 and 

pressure up and p o t e n t i a l l y squeeze t h a t zone w i t h cement. 

And a d d i t i o n a l n o n c o n t r o l l a b l e r e n t a l - t y p e 

services as f a r as t o get us t o t i e back on. 

Other than t h a t , when we go i n t o complete w e ' l l 

have — 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , then, before completion, then, 

your e s t i m a t i o n i s t h a t i t could cost $135,000-plus? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You get t o t h a t p o i n t , then. 

Summarize f o r us what i s the t o t a l cost a t t r i b u t e d t o 

completing the w e l l . 

A. I f we're successful from t h a t p o i n t , the 

approximate cost would be $194,700. 
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Q. What i s your expectation w i t h regards t o any 

s t i m u l a t i o n program r e q u i r e d f o r completing t h e w e l l ? 

A. The Strawn formation out here i s — I t ' s r a t h e r 

unique. I t r e q u i r e s a f a i r l y l a r g e — an a c i d - f r a c type of 

treatment. You have t o i n i t i a l l y go i n w i t h a small 

s t i m u l a t i o n and then f o l l o w i t up by a r a t h e r expensive 

g e l l e d - a c i d j o b t o e s t a b l i s h production. 

Q. Assuming you're successful, what are the t o t a l 

completion costs estimated f o r the we l l ? 

A. The estimated t o t a l completion cost i s $330,200. 

Q. Of which $194,000-plus i s a t t r i b u t e d t o t h e 

a c t u a l completion and the t u b u l a r s and others i n c i d e n t a l t o 

t h a t a c t i v i t y ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Was t h i s AFE prepared w i t h the assistance of 

d r i l l i n g and completion engineers t h a t had e x p e r t i s e w i t h 

regards t o t h i s t o p i c ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , do you b e l i e v e t h i s AFE t o be 

f a i r and reasonable? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's address, now, the v a l u a t i o n of the e x i s t i n g 

w e l l b o r e . 

A. Okay. 

Q. I d e n t i f y f o r us E x h i b i t Number 14. What does 
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t h a t show? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 14 i s another A u t h o r i t y or AFE, 

A u t h o r i t y f o r Expenditure. 

This was prepared f o r me by Moore and Associates 

of Odessa, Texas, who i s an independent d r i l l i n g 

c o n s u l t a n t . 

They came up w i t h a proposal as i f we were going 

t o d r i l l the w e l l from s t a r t t o f i n i s h as a Strawn t e s t . 

Q. And what i s t h e i r estimate of a new Strawn t e s t 

w e l l i n t h i s area? 

A. For a completed Strawn t e s t , t h e i r e s t i m a t i o n 

comes up t o be $639,225. 

Q. How does t h i s number compare t o what C&K advised 

the D i v i s i o n was t h e i r a n t i c i p a t e d cost of the w e l l 

o r i g i n a l l y when they d r i l l e d i t back i n 1977? 

A. From the AFE t h a t I have seen from the records, 

i n 1977 t h i s i s w i t h i n , I t h i n k , $2000 of the o r i g i n a l AFE 

t h a t C&K came up w i t h i n 1977. 

Q. How do you propose, Mr. Naumann, t o a t t r i b u t e 

those costs and r e l a t e i t back t o present value of the 

e x i s t i n g w e l l b o r e , as you now have i t ? 

A. Well, the way we look a t t h i s , the w e l l b o r e , the 

way i t ' s s i t u a t e d out th e r e c u r r e n t l y , a c t u a l l y has a 

l i t t l e b i t more value than — as i f you were going — You 

don't have a dryhole s i t t i n g t h e r e ; you a c t u a l l y have some 
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casing which i s i n place, which again has value. 

So t o get t o the p o i n t where we are, the 

estimated dry hole cost i s $406,000. We're a c t u a l l y 

probably d e a l i n g w i t h a l i t t l e b i t more. 

Q. So i f we're d e a l i n g w i t h dryhole costs of a 

l i t t l e over $400,000, how f a r have you apportioned or taken 

a percentage of t h a t t o come up w i t h a value f o r t h e 

e x i s t i n g wellbore t h a t you're a l l o c a t i n g back t o the 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. We've come up w i t h approximately a 25-percent 

f i g u r e . 

Q. So 25 percent of what i t would cost you c u r r e n t l y 

t o do the work i s assigned back t o the e x i s t i n g value of 

t h i s w e l l b o r e , and t h a t ' s the $95,000? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , i s t h a t a f a i r and reasonable 

way t o a l l o c a t e a determined value f o r the e x i s t i n g 

wellbore? 

A. Yes, I bel i e v e i t i s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Naumann, Mr. Examiner. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t s 10 

through 14. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 10 through 14 w i l l 

be admitted as evidence. 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Naumann, what i s the a c t u a l value you've come 

up w i t h as f a r as the value of the wellbore? 

A. A c t u a l l y , we came up w i t h $95,000, which was 

based upon the AFE t h a t I had, and my engineers had 

prepared f o r me in-house, which our AFE was, I b e l i e v e — I 

do not have t h a t present, but I b e l i e v e i t was j u s t a few 

thousand d o l l a r s ' d i f f e r e n c e than the AFE prepared by Moore 

and Associates. 

Q. The exact $95,000 was a r r i v e d a t how? 

A. Through the AFE prepared f o r me in-house. I f you 

use the 25-percent f i g u r e t h a t we used on t h i s $406,000, I 

t h i n k i t comes out t o l i k e $98,000. A c t u a l l y a l i t t l e 

h i g her. 

Q. $101,000 a c t u a l l y . 

A. I s i t $101,000? 

Q. So you have an in-house AFE t h a t ' s lower than — 

A. I t ' s a l i t t l e b i t lower, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. How d i d you a r r i v e a t 25 percent? 

A. Well, the 25-percent f i g u r e was based on a l o t of 

the assumptions of p e n a l t i e s t h a t we've been a t t r i b u t e d t o 

d e a l i n g w i t h major o i l companies on some of the terms t h a t 

we've had t o go under w i t h them on c e r t a i n ventures, be i t 

backends or farmouts or whatever. 
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Q. Are you t a l k i n g about an exact k i n d o f s i t u a t i o n 

t h a t you've d e a l t w i t h major o i l companies on? 

A. Oh, sure, I've, you know, d e a l t w i t h those guys 

on — or d i f f e r e n t companies, and a c t u a l l y I've had up t o 

33- and 50-percent f i g u r e s . I f e l t the 25 percent was on 

the low end. 

Q. Have you — As f a r as the Enron and OXY 

i n t e r e s t s , have they agreed t o t h i s amount? 

A. I am not aware i f they have or have not. I t h i n k 

Mr. Frye might be able t o answer t h a t . I b e l i e v e we've 

come t o terms w i t h the lease or farmout w i t h OXY and Enron 

groups or — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let me ask Mr. Frye. Go 

ahead, Mr. Frye, go ahead and answer t h a t question i f you 

can. 

MR. FRYE: We're s t i l l n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h them. Of 

course, they're not — We don't have a formal agreement 

from Enron, and we're s t i l l l o o k i n g a t OXY's. 

I n n e i t h e r case have they allowed us t o in c l u d e 

the c o sts, the value of the wellbore i n — Well, I guess i n 

e i t h e r case i t d i d n ' t — i n t o a payout because th e y ' r e j u s t 

g e t t i n g an o v e r r i d e . So now t h a t I t h i n k about i t , i t ' s 

not been addressed; i t ' s unnecessary i n the d i r e c t i o n we're 

going i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm not sure he d i d n ' t confuse 
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you. 

MR. FRYE: Yeah. 

MR. KELLAHIN: The arrangement w i t h Enron and OXY 

i s intended t o be where t h e i r i n t e r e s t i s c a r r i e d . They're 

going t o recei v e an ov e r r i d e . And so the a l l o c a t i o n of 

costs of the c u r r e n t wellbore i s not a component of those 

deals. They're going t o have t o pay f o r i t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. FRYE: Much b e t t e r . 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) Mr. Naumann, the Strawn 

w e l l i n the northeast quarter of Section 8, i s t h a t a 

commercial Strawn well? 

A. With the s i x - f o o t designation? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Yes, t h a t i s a commercial w e l l . 

Q. Was the Strawn i n t e r v a l not t e s t e d i n t he 

we l l b o r e , i n t h i s wellbore? 

A. I n the C&K 1 "7", no, i t was not. 

Q. You've got p r e t t y good w e l l c o n t r o l around t h a t 

w e l l b o r e ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. We have good w e l l c o n t r o l o f f t o the east and t o 

the west. Obviously w i t h the town of Carlsbad t h e r e are no 

w e l l s t o the n o r t h , so we have no c o n t r o l t o the n o r t h . 

Q. I s the r e any other p o t e n t i a l i n the w e l l b o r e 

besides the Strawn? 
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A. Not t h a t I have seen. I f e e l t h a t b a s i c a l l y t h i s 

i s going t o be a Strawn or nothing f o r us. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That's a l l we have, Mr. 

K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n , 

Mr. Examiner. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Thomas, excuse me, we're not 

done w i t h you. Maybe you can address these issues. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , i n s o f a r as the i n t e r e s t s t h a t were 

not n o t i f i e d of t h i s proceeding — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — we've come up w i t h a 

couple of suggestions. 

We'd l i k e f o r you t o t r y and o b t a i n a waiver of 

n o t i c e f o r the hearing, a waiver of o b j e c t i o n t o not being 

provided n o t i c e of the hearing. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Or i f you — Or i f the 

Ap p l i c a n t does make a deal w i t h these p a r t i e s , I t h i n k t h a t 

would be s u f f i c i e n t t o waive the n o t i c e requirement. 

But I t h i n k a t t h i s p o i n t w e ' l l take the case 

under advisement, but I t h i n k those i n t e r e s t owners s t i l l 

have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o o b j e c t , and i f they o b j e c t w e ' l l 

re-open the case. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Well, I don't t h i n k there's any 

question they would have t h a t o p p o r t u n i t y . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: So I t h i n k you need t o e i t h e r 

get a waiver or reach an agreement w i t h these p a r t i e s , some 

k i n d of agreement. 

almost 300 i n t e r e s t owners, and t o have one g l i t c h l i k e 

t h i s i s amazing. And w e ' l l do what he j u s t o f f e r e d t o do; 

w e ' l l continue t o t a l k t o them, w e ' l l n o t i f y them, w e ' l l 

s p e c i f y the o p p o r t u n i t y . They can come back t o open t h i s 

case up i f they care t o discuss these issues. 

But I'm hopeful we can resol v e i t and t h i s t i n y 

l i t t l e i n t e r e s t i s not an issue f o r anybody. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. Well, keep us posted 

on the e f f o r t s and what's going on. 

There being nothing f u r t h e r i n t h i s case, Case 

10,979 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

9:30 a.m.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: That's our i n t e n t , Mr. Examiner. 

I t h i n k Mr. Frye has done an i n c r e d i b l e j o b w i t h 

* * * 
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